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Caroline Harrington - Assistant Business Manager 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

David Barker- Communication Manager 
03 December 2001 16:23 
Caroline Harrington; Eileen Thomas; Fiona Cameron; Humphrey, Lesley; lan Piper; Max 
Millett; Reid, lan (Dr) (Elderly) 
Jarrett, David (Dr) 
FW: FW: Portsmouth News expected article - mackenzie/richards GWMH 

att.dat 

Info 

..... Original Message ..... 
From: p=NHS NATIONAL 
INT ;a=NHS; C= G B; d d a: R F C- 822 ~;i;i;i;i;i;i;i;i~.o_-_d.-i~-i-_A.-_;i;i;i;i;i;i;i;ii 
sent: 03 December 2001 15:48 
To: s=Barker;g=David;o=nhs portsmouth healthcare tr;p=nhs s and w 
hn;a=nhs;c=gb; 
Cc: p=NHS NATIONAL 
INT;a=NHS;c=GB;dda:RFC-822=[~~-_0.-~I~~i p=NHS NATIONAL 
INT;a=NHS;c=GB;dda:RFC-822=~ ..................................... 5o~ie-~ ..................................... I 
NATIONAL I NT; a= N H S; c= G B ;dd a i-I~P-C-8~2-:2~ ........................... ’(3"o d e’,~," ........................... i 
Subject: Re: FW: Portsmouth News expected"~l-I~[�-Ie---I~-ac[~e-i];;feir[c~a-i~cl-S ............ " 

GWMH 

Hi David 

Thank you for this advance warning - it is really helpful so that we can 
prepare our line¯ If approached we will reiterate what has been said in 
our news releases, that: 

The investigation follows concerns expressed by the public about the 
administration of drugs at the hospital around 1998 and general concerns 
about standards which attracted coverage in the local media. The 
investigation will particularly look at whether, since 1998, trust systems 
have ensured good quality patient care and prevented harm to patients, 
looking in detail at: 
§ arrangements for administering drugs 
§ clarity of responsibility for patient care 
§ transfer arrangements for patients between Gosport War Memorial Hospital 
and other local hospitals 

We will not be able to comment on any findings, as the investigation is 
still in progress, but would be able to give comments on the process of 
the investigation (eg that we have held public consultation meetings and 
would still be happy to hear from anybody with both good and bad 
experiences of care at GWMH, that the team will be visiting the hospital 
in January and that a report on our findings will be made public next 
year). 

Can I also ask if you could fax over the piece if and when it appears (and 
let us know on Wednesday if it doesn’t)? I am out of the office at a 
conference all day Wednesday, but Jessica will be available on 6 Code A i 
[~.~_]The fax numbers to recelve.t._h.e_._a._~!_c/.e_._a._r.e_.’._L ....... C.o_d_.e_..A_ ........ j(alrect to 
communications department) and i ......... _C._o.de_._A._ ......... !tirect to investigations). 

Thanks 

L .................................................. 
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Communications Manager- Reviews and Investigations 
Commission for Health Improvement 
Finsbury Tower 
103-105 Bunhill Row 
London EClY 8TG 

M o b i I ~i~-_0-~l~~i 

Any views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, 
except where the sender specifically states them to be the views of the 
Commission for Health Improvement. Any unauthorised disclosure of the 
information contained in this email is strictly prohibited. 

Please check for viruses before accessing attachments. Although we 
endeavour to keep files clean we can take no responsibility for any damage 
caused by contagion. 

David Barker- Communication Manager ~ .............................. -C-o-de-A .............................. i 
03/12/01 13:46 ~ ................................................................................. ’ 

TO: i .......................................................................................................... Code A i 
L ......................................................................................................... 

CC: 

Subject:    FW: Portsmouth News expected article - mackenzie/richards GWMH 

hope you’re ok. For your info, we’ve had a call from The News today - they 
are planning to resurrect the Mrs MacKenzie story later this week (see 
below) 

Thanks 

David 

Original Message ..... 
> From: David Barker- Communication Manager 
> Sent: 03 December 2001 13:38 
> To: Caroline Harrington; Eileen Thomas; Fiona Cameron; 
Humphrey, Lesley; 
> lan Piper; Max Millett; Reid, lan (Dr) (Elderly) 
> Cc: Jarrett, David (Dr); Galley Sue (QEV) lOW Ports & SE 
Hants HA; 
>[ ............................. ~o~ie-~ ............................ q Peter King - Personnel Director; 

....................................................................... = 

Eileen 
> Thomas - Nursing Director; Andrew Wood - Finance Director; Kirtley John 
> (4JC79)* Fareham & Gosport PCGs 
> Subject:        Portsmouth News expected article - 
mackenzie/richards GWMH 
> 
> All, 
> 
> Chris Owen, the News’ senior reporter, phoned me today to say they are 
> ’thinking of running’ a ’big story’ on Weds, having been in recent 
contact 
> with Mrs MacKenzie. She is still very unhappy about there being no 
> prosecutions brought from the police investigation. Apparently she has 
> handed over to them all her records/medical notes about the case and 
they 
> are intending to do a chronological report of the case from start to 
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> finish. A supporting panel alongside it will cover Max’s letter to her 
> sister, Lesley Lack, in answer to the original complaint. If they use it 
> we can expect them to make the most of it. 
> 
> Chris Owen told me that they are checking things through with their 
legal 
> people at the moment to see what they can and can’t use - as they now 
have 
> access to two names (Jane Barton. Phillip Beed) from the info they have 
> been given. Based on the lawyers’ say so, they will print these as part 
of 
> the story if they can; although he said it will not directly accuse them 
> of any wrong doing, I would think they will try and get maximum mileage 
> out of having some names to use, if they get the legal go ahead... 
> 
> Clearly the reporter is keen to approach them, but isn’t expecting any 
> joy there and so has asked us for a Trust view. We are not keen to add 
> fuel to this one again so the line will be: 
> 
> - we know Mrs MacKenzie was dissatisfied with the outcome of the police 
> investigation, but from the Trust’s perspective her concerns were fully 
> investigated by the Police, with the full cooperation of the Trust, and 
> the CPS found no grounds for proceeding with the case. The case was 
closed 
> in July 2001. 
> 
> - the Trust wrote to Mrs MacKenzie to inform her of the subsequent 
> Commission for Health Improvement investigation and we understand she is 
> meeting with the CHI team 
> 
> - the CHI investigation is ongoing and whilst we recognise that concerns 
> were expressed publicly about the care provided in specific cases at the 
> hospital in 1998, we hope that the investigation will help reassure 
people 
> about the care provided today and allow us to demonstrate the progress 
we 
> have made in service provision over the past two or three years 
> 
> - the Trust has full confidence in the staff who work at Gosport War 
> Memorial Hospital and in the excellent services they provide. We are 
keen 
> to support them during the review process to ensure they can contribute 
to 
> it fully. 
> 
> - given the current status of the CHI investigation we are unable to 
> comment further, pending their final report. 
> 
> Depending on what the News can and cannot use, when they decide to use 
it 
> (as I say Weds is likely but this may change) or whether they use it at 
> all (very unlikely but depends what they are left with after their legal 
> vetting) we should expect, and prepare staff for, a further flurry of 
> media interest. 
> 
> Clearly if names go into the public domain then JB/PB will need to be 
> aware of possible media attempts to get in touch with them. They 
obviously 
> need to be briefed, along with all staff at GWMH to be vigilant, not to 
> comment and to refer all enquiries to TCO in the usual way - FIONA to 
pick 
> up. 
> 
> No doubt more to come on this one so will keep you posted .... 
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ICOVER STORY                       ~-----0~~ 

An inspector calls 
A visit from the Commission for Health Improvement can be a daunting prospect. CHRISTINA BUNCE 
explains what you can expect to happen before, during and after an inspection 

N 
urses feel a chill wind when the), learn 

that government inspectors are 
coming to visit. A Commission for 
Health Improvement (CHI) 
inspection is perceived by many as the 
health version of OFSTED 

inspections, which are notorious for ’naming and 
shaming’ schools and those 
working within them 

Despite reassurances 
from the government 
that CHI inspections 
should allow nurses 
to contribute to 
positive change, 
there is a great deal 
of anxiety before, 
during and after a 
clinical governance 
inspection. 

While nurses are used to 
peer review, continuing 
professional 
development, reflective 
practice and quality 
assessm~ it is 
quite another 
thing to 
have a 
team of 
external 

government-appointed inspectors coming to 
watch you work. 

Senior nurses in trusts and CHI admit that 
nurses feel ’extremely nervous’ during the 
inspection process. But they are keen to stress that 
the clinical governance inspections should not be 
seen as a threatening scrutiny of nursing practice. 

’These are not service reviews, we are not 
looking at how good the standard of care is on a 
particular unit,’ says Liz Fradd, director of nursing 
at CH!. ’We are trying to test how good the systems 

of clinical governance are how well the), are 
understood by staff and how well the elements of 
clinical governance are supported and managed.’ 

The CHI inspections are part of a government 
drive to improve quality, and iron out variations 
in standards between NHS providers. 

Fifty acute trusts have been subjected to 
inspections since the commission started work in 
April 2000. Every NHS organisation in the country, 
including primary and secondary care trusts, 
ambulance service trusts and NHS Direct will have 
had a CHI visit by 2004. Then CHI inspectors will 

start revisiting providers. 
The inspections look at the 
management, provision and 

quality of service provided by 
trusts and identify examples of 
best practice and areas for 

improvement. The 24-week 
assessment involves 
gathering information 

from staff, service users 
and other 

stakeholders. The 
CHI team uses 
interviews with staff 

to help it build up a 
picture of what the trust 
is doing to ensure 
high-quality care for its 

: patients, and to identify 
areas where it could 
improve services. 
At the end of the 

assessment, a report 
is published 
outlining what 
action needs to be : . 

taken by the trust. 
Fallout after a 

CHI reviewcan : 
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WHAT HAPPENS DURING A CLINICAL GOVERNANCE INSPECTION? 

Trusts are selected for inspection 
randomly or on a recommendation 

by the English regional NHS offices 
or the Welsh National Assembly 

Who conducts the inspection? 
An inspection team is appointed 
which will normally include a 

doctor, a nurse, a professional allied 

to medicine, a pharmacist, a 
therapist, a lay member, and a 
manager. The team:s make-up may 
vary according to the clinical areas 

that will be under review. The team 
members will normally be seconded 

from their permanent positions and 
perform up to two inspections a 
year. Team members will have had 

no previous association with the 
trust that is under review. 

The inspection process 
The inspection normally takes about 

six months and has three stages: 

Weeks 1-5 
Pre-site preparation 
¯ The trust will nominate a trust 
coordinator to act as a focal point 
and point of contact for the 

inspection process; 
¯ CHI will seek the opinions of 
patients, staff, relatives and 
related organisations to try to 

identify relevant themes of public 
opinion. CHI will request various 
types of data and reports. This 
information will be used to identify 
specific therapeutic areas for 
the review team to look at during 

its visit; 

¯ CHI will meet management 
teams at the trust to explain the 
review process and answer queries; 
¯ A start-up meeting will be held, 
usually during the third week of the 
inspection. Up to four people from 

CHI will attend the meeting with 
senior trust managers, including the 
director of nursing. 

Week 16 
Site visit 
The team of CHI inspectors will 
spend a week visiting the site, 
meeting staff, observing the 
day-to-day working of the units 
under review, and then interviewing 
groups of staff and patients. 

Interviews with nurses will often be 
on an individual basis, either by 

appointment or chosen randomly 
during the working day. Individuals 

are not named in the report, 
although comments may be quoted. 

Weeks 17-24 
Production of the report 
¯ The inspection team drafts a 
report outlining its key findings, 
examples of best practice and areas 
for improvement. This is then 

discussed with the trust, which 
comments on its factual accuracy; 

¯ CHI’s final summary and report is 
published; 
¯ The trust then begins work on an 
action plan in response to the 
report, working with CHI to set 
objectives to implement necessary 
improvements. 

REVIEW SUMMARY: HOMERTON HOSPITAL NHS TRUST 
The review looked in depth at 
arrangements in three clinical 

teams which provide care for 
general medical patients, patients 
who are admitted for general 
surgery, and those who require 
maternity and neonatal care. 

FINDINGS 

EXAMPLES OF NOTABLE 
PRACTICE 
¯ The health advocacy service and 
the health information shop 

demonstrate the commitment of 
the trust to working with patients. 
The trust has made considerable 
efforts to work with local 
communities to try to ensure their 

cultural needs are met. CHI 

welcomes this approach and 
this is evidence of good practice; 

¯ There is a very good working 
relationship between the executive 

and staff at all levels. The 
executive has clinical credibility 
and is seen by clinical staff as 
being in touch with their issues; 

¯ Staff at all levels felt supported 
and encouraged to report untoward 

incidents and near misses so that 
lessons could be learnt and systems 
improved. There is evidence of 
changes to practices as a result of 
incident reporting. A no-blame 

culture exists; 

¯ The trust has an outstanding 

commitment to training with a 

good training programme and 
opportunities for staff at all levels. 

KEY AREAS FOR ACTION 
¯ The admissions process for all 
patients, but especially for those 
suffering strokes and broken hips, 

should be further streamlined to 
ensure that the patient experience 
is improved; 

¯ Urgent action is required by the 
wider health community to 
collectively address the causes of 

the high neonatal mortality and 
stillbirth rates and to find ways 

to reduce them; 

¯ There is more work needed to 

develop a process that 
systematically looks at the 
effectiveness of the procedures the 
trust’s clinicians carry out, with a 
view to assessing whether the best 
evidence-based practice is adopted; 

¯ There is progress and 
development at a strategic level in 
IT and information management, 

but it is difficult to find evidence of 
how these systems support 
improvements in patient care. 
Action is required to ensure a 
cohesive approach to the use of 

information and to involve clinical 
staff and the public in determining 
how information is gathered and 
used to enhance the patient’s 
experience. 

be substantial. Nursing issues inevitably come to 
the fore during the review process. Local press and 
media often pick up on negative aspects of the 
report, which can be demoralising for staff and 
worrying for patients. 

For staff to be protected from the aftermath of 
the review, it is important that they are adequately 
prepared for the visit. 

Liz Fradd says: ’While I wouldn’t advocate any 
formal preparation for the review itself, a great deal 
of anxiety can be reduced if trusts ensure that staff 
understand what the review is aiming to do. 
Indeed, if staff are anxious because they 
misunderstand the nature of what we are doing, 
that in itself is indicative that the system of clinical 
governance is not working as well as it could be.’ 

Along with other health care professionals, 
nurses working in areas on which the review team 
is focusing will be asked to attend interviews with 
members of the CHI team. The team will want to 
see nurses from all grades. Team members will also 
spend time on each unit observing the daily 
routines and chatting informally with staff on duty. 

Ms Fradd believes that a’business as usual’ 
attitude is the most appropriate and that there is 
little point in nurses trying to swot up on issues 
they think they will be questioned on. 

’There is no given set of questions, and no right 
or wrong answers,’ she says. ’Often we are not 

’The inspection gives nurses a 
platform to highlight how they 
feel things co.ld he improved’ 

asking about nursing issues, we are merely asking 
for the nurses’ perspective on broader aspects of 
how the hospital is run.’ 

The information required from nurses obviously 
varies between trusts and ties in with issues that 
have been highlighted for review. In one hospital, 
interviews centred on how nurses felt aboul: things 
such as user involvement, recruitment policies and 

what they perceived as areas of good practice. 
Nurses were also asked to talk about stress, what it 
feels like and how they feel it affects their practice. 

Pauline Brown, director of nursing at the 
Homerton Hospital NHS Trust, north east 
London, which received a good inspection report 
earlier this year, says that nurses should see the 
review as an opportunity to highlight what they see 
as workplace problems. 

’We all have frustrations with issues that we are 
unable to address ourselves. The inspection gives 
nurses a platform to highlight how they feel things 
could be improved. IfCHI picks up an issue then it 
has to be addressed. Most of the criticisms outlined 
in our inspection were ones that nurses were well 
aware of and frustrated about. It is a way of 
bringing them to the fore.’ 

This was illustrated when the review report was 
published. 

’Most of the criticisms were of things we are 
ourselves critical of,’ Ms Brown says. ’Where they 
weren’t, it was often down to misconceptions based 
on the way data was interi~reted. We wer’e a-’N’g{b 

24 November 15 2001, Volume 97, No 46 NURSING TIMES 
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REVIEW SUMMARY: UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS COVENTRY AND 
WARWICKSHIRE NHS TRUST 
IrINDINGS 

The patient’s experience 
¯ The trust performed 
significantly worse than the 
English average in two of the seven 

national clinical indicators and 
significantly better in one of them; 
¯ Death rates for both emergency 

and non-emergency admissions are 
above the national average; 
¯ Readmission rates are higher 

than the national average and 
there is significant variation 
between individual consultants; 
¯ The number of patients being 
discharged within 28 days with a 
fractured hip is better than the 
national average; 
¯ During the 1999-2000 financial 

year, the trust achieved its 
inpatient waiting list and waiting 
time targets; 
¯ Day case overstays are above 
the national average; 
¯ There was little evidence of the 
development of clinical care 

pathways; 
¯ There was an overall perception 
that care and treatment were 
provided in a competent and 
caring way, but there were 
instances where dignity and 

’ privacy were not respected. 
¯ The emergency admissions unit 
was extremely cramped and needs 

urgent review. 

Use of information 
There has been worthwhile 
development at corporate level 
and some development at 

divisional level in the use of 

information about the patient’s 
experience, resources and 

processes. 

Clinical risk management 
¯ There is some development at 
corporate, divisional and clinical 

level in implementing clinical risk 
management; 
¯ A just culture, in which staff 
would not be blamed unless they 
had recklessly made errors, is 
rarely evident; 
¯ Clinical risk management is 
seriously undermined by the fact 

that some senior medical staff 
feel intimidated when reporting 

clinical risk; 
¯ The practice of putting five beds 
in bays designed for four is 
unacceptable and should cease 
immediately; 
¯ The current configuration of 
A&E and the emergency 
admissions unit may put patients 

at risk and an immediate clinical 
risk assessment is required; 
¯ The trust has developed a 
clinical risk management strategy 
but this is not consistently applied 
throughout the trust and there are 

few feedback mechanisms as part 
of the reporting process. 

Clinical audit 
¯ There is some development at 
corporate and divisional level in 

clinical audit; 
¯ There is some effective 
clinical audit and subsequent 
service development and 

change, but audit is not 
embedded in all areas of the 

trust and some areas undertake no 
clinical audit. 

Staffing and staff management 

¯ The trust has some staff 
management procedures and 

policies but they are not always 
followed. 

Education, training and 
continuing personal and 
professional development 
¯ There is strategic grasp and 
substantial implementation in 
education and CPD with alignment 

across corporate, divisional and 

clinical teams. 

EXAMPLES OF NOTABLE 
PRACTICE 
¯ The work of the chaplains to 

ensure a multi-faith service is 
notable. The trust clearly 
acknowledges the diversity of need 

of individual faiths and beliefs; 
¯ The GP out-of-hours cooperative 

at the Hospital of St Cross is an 
example of integrating other care 

with A&E; 
¯ Patient diaries are a notable 
example of patients being involved 

in their own care; . 
¯ Opportunities for experience in 

specialist clinical areas for trainee 

doctors and CPD, particularly for 
nursing staff, are notable examples 

of staff development. 

argue our case and provide evidence to back it up, 
and our final report reflected that.’ 

Following a CHI inspection, its report and 
subsequent action plan will normally be 
disseminated around the trust. Again, it is important 
to stress the positive learning aspect of the exercise, 
even when reports appear to be negative. 

The University Hospitals Coventry, and 
Warwickshire NHS Trust received a less than positive 
review, and its head of communications John 
Richardson admits that nurses were probably bruised 
by the criticisms. But he emphasises that the way 
forward is to be more positive. 

’Any criticism is not of nurses’ day-to-day work, 
and not of their professional ability, but of the 
systems in place. It is worth noting that clinical 
governance is relatively new and a steep learning 
curve needs to be negotiated before it becomes part 
of every practitioner’s day-to-day work. 

’CHI is also new and is willing to admit that the 
way it conducts inspections is not yet perfect. ]’he 
wa, look at the outcome is to see it as a baseline 
against which to measure future improvement.’lqrr 

WHAT IS CLINICAL 
GOVERNANCE? 

A CHI inspection looks at the 

effectiveness of an NHS 
organisation’s clinical governance 
arrangements. It will assess the 
management, provision and quality 

of service provided by the 
or ganisation and identify best 

~ractice which it will share with 
the rest of the NHS. It will also 
identify areas for improvement. 

CHI defines clinical governance as 

’a system of steps and procedures 
adopted by the NHS to ensure that 
patients receive the highest possible 
quality of care’. It involves: 

¯ A patient-centred approach; 
¯ Accountability for quality; 

¯ Ensuring high standards of safety; 
¯ Improvements in patient 

services and care. 
Effective clinical governance 

should guarantee that: 
¯ Patient services are 
continuously improved; 

¯ Staff treat patients courteously 

and involve them in decisions; 
¯ Patients have all the information 
they need about their care; 
¯ Health professionals are up to 

date in their practices; 
¯ Clinical errors are prevented 
wherever possible. 
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Caroline Harrington -Assistant Business Manager 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

David Barker- Communication Manager 
03 December 2001 13:38 
Caroline Harrington; Eileen Thomas; Fiona Cameron; Humphrey, Lesley; lan Piper; Max 
Millett; Reid, lan (Dr) (Elderly) 
Jarrett, David (Dr); Galley Sue (QEV) lOW Ports & SE Hants HA; 
~.~i-~.-.-i-~--J Peter King - Personnel Director; Eileen Thomas - 
Nursing Director; Andrew Wood - Finance Director; Kirtley John (4JC79)* Fareham & 
Gosport PCGs 
Portsmouth News expected article - mackenzie/richards GWMH 

All, 

Chris Owen, the News’ senior reporter, phoned me today to say they are ’thinking of running’ a ’big story’ on Weds, 
having been in recent contact with Mrs MacKenzie. She is still very unhappy about there being no prosecutions 
brought from the police investigation. Apparently she has handed over to them all her records/medical notes about 
the case and they are intending to do a chronological report of the case from start to finish. A supporting panel 
alongside it will cover Max’s letter to her sister, Lesley Lack, in answer to the original complaint. If they use it we can 
expect them to make the most of it. 

Chris Owen told me that they are checking things through with their legal people at the moment to see what they can 
and can’t use - as they now have access to two names (Jane Barton. Phillip Beed) from the info they have been 
given. Based on the lawyers’ say so, they will print these as part of the story if they can; although he said it will not 
directly accuse them of any wrong doing, I would think they will try and get maximum mileage out of having some 
names to use, if they get the legal go ahead... 

Clearly the reporter is keen to approach them, but isn’t expecting any joy there and so has asked us for a Trust view. 
We are not keen to add fuel to this one again so the line will be: 

- we know Mrs MacKenzie was dissatisfied with the outcome of the police investigation, but from the Trust’s 
perspective her concerns were fully investigated by the Police, with the full cooperation of the Trust, and the CPS 
found no grounds for proceeding with the case. The case was closed in July 2001. 

- the Trust wrote to Mrs MacKenzie to inform her of the subsequent Commission for Health Improvement 
investigation and we understand she is meeting with the CHI team 

- the CHI investigation is ongoing and whilst we recognise that concerns were expressed publicly about the care 
provided in specific cases at the hospital in 1998, we hope that the investigation will help reassure people about the 
care provided today and allow us to demonstrate the progress we have made in service provision over the past two 
or three years 

- the Trust has full confidence in the staff who work at Gosport War Memorial Hospital and in the excellent services 
they provide. We are keen to support them during the review process to ensure they can contribute to it fully. 

- given the current status of the CHI investigation we are unable to comment further, pending their final report. 

Depending on what the News can and cannot use, when they decide to use it (as I say Weds is likely but this may 
change) or whether they use it at all (very unlikely but depends what they are left with after their legal vetting) we 
should expect, and prepare staff for, a further flurry of media interest. 

Clearly if names go into the public domain then JB/PB will need to be aware of possible media attempts to get in 
touch with them. They obviously need to be briefed, along with all staff at GWMH to be vigilant, not to comment and 
to refer all enquiries to TCO in the usual way - FIONA to pick up. 

No doubt more to come on this one so will keep you posted .... 


